IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : CRIMINAL NO. 12-658
V. : DATE FILED:
DARRELL WILLIAMS, : VIOLATIONS:
a/k/a “Darrell Blue,” 18 U.S.C. § 1951(a) (conspiracy to
DAVID STORY, : commit robbery which interferes
a/k/a “Dawoo,” with interstate commerce - 1
RUFUS LAWSON, : count)
a/k/a “Ru,” 18 U.S.C. § 1951(a) (robbery which
KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, : interferes with interstate
a/k/a “Ice,” commerce — 5 counts)
ANTHONY LOCKWOOD, : 18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1) (using and
a/k/a “Ant,” carrying a firearm during a
DERRICK SHERRILL, : crime of violence — 3 counts)
a/k/a “D Nice,” 18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting)
BRIAN MARQUISE SHEED, :

AMIN ABDUR-RAHE SHABAZZ

SECOND SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

At all times relevant to this indictment:

1. Tourneau, a watch and jewelry store located at 160 North Gulph Road,
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by
providing to customers jewelry, watches, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported
from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.

2. Govberg Jewelers, a watch and jewelry store located at 292 Montgomery

Avenue in Ardmore, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce



by providing to customers jewelry, watches, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported
from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.

3. Bernie Robbins Jewelry, a watch and jewelry store located at 595 E.
Lancaster Avenue in Saint Davids, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting
interstate commerce by providing to customers jewelry, watches, and other goods produced,
purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.

4. Jay Roberts Jewelers, a watch and jewelry store located at 515 Route 73
South in Marlton, New Jersey, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by
providing to customers jewelry, watches, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported
from other states and countries to New Jersey.

5. Hamilton Jewelers, a watch and jewelry store located at 2542 Brunswick
Pike in Lawrenceville, New Jersey, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce
by providing to customers jewelry, watches, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported
from other states and countries to New Jersey.

6. From on or about July 13, 2011, through on or about November 3, 2012, in
Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Darrell Blue,”
DAVID STORY,
a/k/a “Dawoo,”
RUFUS LAWSON,
a’k/a “Ru,”
KENNETH L. WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Ice”
ANTHONY LOCKWOOD,

a/k/a “Ant,” and
DERRICK SHERRILL,

2



a/k/a “D Nice”
conspired and agreed, together and with persons known to the grand jury, including, but not
limited to, Willie Hawkins Smith, James Howard, and Santo Wadlington, charged elsewhere, and
Robbers #1, and #3, and persons unknown to the grand jury, including Robber #2, to commit
robbery, which robberies unlawfully obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce, and the
movement of articles and commodities in commerce, in that defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS,
DAVID STORY, RUFUS LAWSON, KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, ANTHONY LOCKWOOD,
and DERRICK SHERRILL conspired to unlawfully take and obtain luxury wristwatches and other
items of value from multiple businesses by entering the stores while they were open for business
with hammers and firearms, and stealing wristwatches and jewelry that were kept in glass display
cases by smashing the cases with hammers, in the presence of the business owners, their
employees, and customers, and against their will, by means of actual and threatened force,
violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future, to their person and property, all in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a), (b)(1), and (b)(3).
MANNER AND MEANS

7. It was part of the conspiracy defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and
DAVID STORY recruited and organized the smash-and-grab jewelry store robbery crews to steal
by force and violence and the use of firearms and hammers, expensive watches and jewelry, and
arranged for the proceeds to be fenced for cash to be shared by defendants WILLIAMS and
STORY and the robbery crews.

8. It was a further part of the conspiracy that to carry out the robberies of the
Tourneau store, Govberg Jewelers, Bernie Robbins Jewelers, Jay Roberts Jewelers and Hamilton
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Jewelers, the retail watch and jewelry businesses listed in Paragraphs 1 through 5, defendants
DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, RUFUS LAWSON, KENNETH L. WILLIAMS,
ANTHONY LOCKWOOQOD, and DERRICK SHERRILL, and persons known and unknown to the
grand jury:

a. researched the businesses over the Internet and entered the businesses
beforehand to determine whether the businesses were selling high end and luxury wristwatches in
sufficient quantities in glass display cases on the sales floors of the stores;

b. wore masks, bandannas, hats, hooded sweatshirts, and Islamic burqgas and
hijabs to conceal tﬁeir faces and identities to elude law enforcement;

c. used large hammers and sledgehammers to smash the display cases
containing high end and luxury wristwatches to remove the watches and jewelry from the cases
and place them in bags that they were carrying with them;

d. used firearms, hammers, and sledgehammers to terrorize the owners and
employees of the businesses to prevent them from interfering with the robbery and to enforce
compliance with their demands;

€. stole over $3,502,544 in wristwatches and jewelry through the commission
of multiple armed robberies of the jewelry stores in paragraphs 1 through 5 above, and by placing
the business owners and their employees in fear of physical harm; and

f.  shared the proceeds of the robberies by either selling the watches and jewelry
and dividing the proceeds from those sales, or splitting the stolen watches and jewelry among

themselves.



OVERT ACTS
9. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to affect the object of the conspiracy,
defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, RUFUS LAWSON, KENNETH L.
WILLIAMS, ANTHONY LOCKWOOD, and DERRICK SHERRILL, and persons known and
unknown to the grand jury including, but not limited to, Willie Hawkins Smith, James Howard,
and Santo Wadlington, <;harged elsewhere, and Robbers #1, #2, and #3, committed the following
overt acts, among others, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere:

The July 13,2011 Tourneau Robbery
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania

On or about July 13, 2011:

1. Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and Willie
Hawkins Smith, and a person known to the grand jury, Robber #1, drove from Philadelphia to the
parking lot of the King of Prussia Mall.

2. Willie Hawkins Smith got out of his car and went inside the King of Prussia
Mall while defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and Robber #1 waited
outside. Smith went to the Tourneau watch and jewelry store and determined that there were no
law enforcement personnel in the area.

3. Willie Hawkins Smith returned to defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and
DAVID STORY, and Robber #1, who were waiting outside the mall in a car, and gave them the
“ok” to commit the robbery.

4, Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and

Robber #1, while armed with hammers, and a firearm, that is, a black handgun, entered the



Tourneau store through the front entrance, while Willie Hawkins Smith waited outside as a
lookout and getaway driver.

5. Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and Robber #1,
forced employees and bystanders to the floor of the Tourneau store at gunpoint while smashing the
glass display cases holding men’s and women’s luxury watches, which they stole from the broken
display cases before fleeing the store.

6. Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY gave the
stolen watches to a person known to the grand jury and defendant RUFUS LAWSON, who sold
the watches, and gave a portion of the proceeds of the sales of the stolen items to defendants
WILLIAMS and STORY, Smith, and Robber #1.

The Govberg Jewelers Robbery
Ardmore, Pennsylvania

On or about January 9, 2012:

7. Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS drove to
Govberg’s Jewelers in Ardmore, Pennsylvania, from Philadelphia.

8. When they arrived, defendant KENNETH L. WILLIAMS entered the store
and looked at the watches for sale.

9. Defendant KENNETH L. WILLIAMS returned to where defendant
LAWSON was waiting and told defendant LAWSON that the store had no Rolex brand watches,
but that they did have many Breitling brand and other “nice” watches in the store.

10.  Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS returned to

Philadelphia, where defendants LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS reported this



information to defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY.

11.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, RUFUS
LAWSON, KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, ANTHONY LOCKWOOD, and James Howard, Santo
Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith, Robber #1, and Robber #2, met in Philadelphia.

12. Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, RUFUS
LAWSON, KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and ANTHONY LOCKWOOD, and James Howard,
Santo Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith, Robber #1, and Robber #2, drove from Philadelphia to
the back parking lot of Govberg Jewelers.

13.  Robber #2 walked up to the front of Govberg’s Jewelers, rang the buzzer,
and a store employee unlocked the door.

14. When Robber #2 opened the door, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS,
DAVID STORY, and ANTHONY LOCKWOOD, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, Willie
Hawkins Smith, and Robber #1, entered the store through the front door.

15.  Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS initially
remained in defendant KENNETH L. WILLIAMS’s truck behind the Govberg’s store in the
parking lot, acting as backup getaway drivers and lookouts.

16.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, and ANTHONY
LOCKWOOD, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #1,
intimidated and threatened employees and customers of the Govberg’s Jewelry with hammers
while smashing the glass display cases containing luxury wristwatches.

17.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, and ANTHONY
LOCKWOOD, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #1 took
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approximately $437,804 in watches and jewelry from the broken display cases before fleeing the
store and returning to Philadelphia.

18.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY gave the
stolen watches and jewelry to defendant RUFUS LAWSON, who sold the watches and turned over
the proceeds of the sales in the form of U.S. currency to defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and
STORY, who kept part of the proceeds for themselves.

19.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY distributed the
remainder of the of the proceeds to defendants RUFUS LAWSON, ANTHONY LOCKWOOD,
and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith,
Robber #1, and Robber #2.

The Bernie Robbins Jewelers Robbery
Saint Davids, Pennsylvania

On or about February 22, 2012:

20.  Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and
Robber #3, drove from Philadelphia to Bernie Robbins Jewelers.

21.  When they arrived, Robber #3 entered the store and looked at the watches
for sale.

22.  Robber #3 returned to where defendants RUFUS LAWSON and
KENNETH L. WILLIAMS were waiting and told them that the store had Rolex and Cartier brand
watches.

23.  Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and

Robber #3 returned to Philadelphia, where defendants LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS



reported this information to defendant DARRELL WILLIAMS.

24.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, and RUFUS
LAWSON, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #2 met
in Philadelphia, and drove in multiple automobiles from Philadelphia to a parking lot near Bernie
Robbins Jewelers.

25.  Robber #2 walked up to the front of Bernie Robbins Jewelers, rang the
buzzer, and a store employee approached and opened the door.

26.  Asthe employee opened the door, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS,
DAVID STORY, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith, entered the
store through the front door.

27.  Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS remained
in the nearby parking lot, acting as lookouts and backup getaway drivers.

28. Once inside the store, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID
STORY, and RUFUS LAWSON, and James Howard, Santo Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith,
brandished handguns and forced employees and bystanders to the floor of the store at gunpoint
while smashing the glass display cases containing luxury wristwatches, and took approximately
$499,655 of watches from the broken display cases before fleeing the store and returning to
Philadelphia.

29.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY gave the
stolen watches to defendant RUFUS LAWSON, who sold the watches and turned over the
proceeds of the sales in the form of U.S. currency to defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and
STORY, who kept part of the proceeds for themselves.
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30. Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY gave the
remainder of the proceeds to defendants RUFUS LAWSON, and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and
James Howard, Santo Wadlington, Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #2.

The Jay Roberts Jewelers Robbery
Marlton, New Jersey

On or about March 8, 2012:

31.  Defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and
Robber #3, drove to Jay Roberts Jewelers in Marlton, New Jersey, from Philadelphia.

32.  When they arrived, Robber #3 entered the store and looked at the watches
for sale. Robber #3 returned to where defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L.
WILLIAMS were waiting and told them that the store had Breitling brand watches. Defendants
LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and Robber #3 returned to Philadelphia, where
defendant LAWSON reported this information to defendant DARRELL WILLIAMS.

33.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY met Willie
Hawkins Smith in Philadelphia, and drove from there to the back parking lot of Jay Roberts
Jewelers.

34,  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and Willie
Hawkins Smith, got out of their car and entered the store through the front door of Jay Roberts
Jewelers yelling at employees and customers to “get down.”

35.  Defendant DAVID STORY began smashing with a hammer the glass cases

where the watches were displayed while defendant DARRELL WILLIAMS and Willie Hawkins
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Smith took 83 watches worth approximately $450,845 and placed them in a bag that they were
carrying, before fleeing the store.

36.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and Willie
Hawkins Smith, drove directly back to Philadelphia, where they gave the watches to defendant
RUFUS LAWSON, who sold them in exchange for U.S. currency.

37.  Defendant RUFUS LAWSON gave the U.S. currency to defendants
DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, who kept part of the cash for themselves, and
distributed the remainder to defendant LAWSON, and Willie Hawkins Smith.

The April 13, 2012 Tourneau Robbery
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania

On or about April 13, 2012:

38.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS DAVID STORY, and RUFUS
LAWSON and James Lee Howard, Santo Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith, drove from
Philadelphia to the parking lot of the King of Prussia Mall.

39.  Defendant RUFUS LAWSON got out of his car and went inside the King of
Prussia Mall while defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and James Lee
Howard, Santo Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith waited outside.

40.  Defendant RUFUS LAWSON went to a coffee shop across from the
Tourneau store, where he called Santo Wadlington and told him that there were no law
enforcement personnel in the area.

41.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and

James Lee Howard, Santo Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith, while armed with hammers
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and firearms, that is two black handguns, entered the Tourneau store through the front entrance.

42.  James Lee Howard and Santo Wadlington brandished firearms, while they
subdued the store security guard by tying his hands and ankles with plastic zip ties.

43, Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and DAVID STORY, and Willie
Hawkins Smith smashed the glass display cases holding luxury wristwatches, taking 28 Rolex
brand watches, worth approximately $685,250, from the broken display cases and placing them
into bags that they were carrying, before fleeing the store.

44.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, and RUFUS
LAWSON, and James Lee Howard, Santo Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith returned to
Philadelphia, where they divided the watches among them.

The Hamilton Jewelers Robbery
Lawrenceville, New Jersey

On or about August 1, 2012:

45, Defendant KENNETH L. WILLIAMS and Robber #3, went to Hamilton
Jewelers in Lawrenceville, New Jersey from Philadelphia.

46.  Defendant KENNETH L. WILLIAMS and Robber #3 entered the store and
saw that the store offered luxury wristwatches for retail sale that were displayed in glass cases.
Defendant KENNETH L. WILLIAMS and Robber #3 returned to Philadelphia and reported this
information to defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY and RUFUS LAWSON.

47.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, RUFUS LAWSON
and DERRICK SHERRILL met in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and drove from there to the parking

lot in front of Hamilton Jewelers in Lawrenceville, New Jersey.
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48.  Defendant RUFUS LAWSON remained in the parking lot acting as a
lookout and getaway driver.

49.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, and DERRICK
SHERRILL entered Hamilton Jewelers carrying hammers and bags.

50.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY and DERRICK
SHERRILL smashed the glass cases containing wristwatches and took 46 watches worth
approximately $373,035, before fleeing the store.

51.  Defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS, DAVID STORY, RUFUS LAWSON
and DERRICK SHERRILL took the watches to Philadelphia, where they divided the watches
among them.

The August 22, 2012 Tourneau Robbery
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania

On or about August 22, 2012:

52. Defendant DAVID STORY and Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #1 met
in Philadelphia and drove from there to the parking lot of the King of Prussia Mall.

53.  Defendant DAVID STORY, Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #1, while
armed with a hammer, entered the Tourneau store through the front entrance.

54.  Defendant DAVID STORY charged at an employee of the Tourneau store
with a hammer.

55.  Defendant DAVID STORY, Willie Hawkins Smith, and Robber #1,
smashed the glass display cases containing luxury wristwatches, which they took from the broken

display cases and placed in bags that they were carrying, before fleeing the store and returning to
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Philadelphia.

56.  Defendant DAVID STORY distributed the stolen wristwatches to
defendants RUFUS LAWSON and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, who attempted to sell the watches
in Philadelphia.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).
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COUNT TWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
At all times material to this indictment:
1. Paragraphs 1 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 1 through 6 of Count One of
this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.
2. On or about July 13, 2011, in King of Prussia, in the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania, defendants
DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a, “Darrell Blue,” and
DAVID STORY,
a/k/a “Dawoo,”
obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS and
STORY, and Willie Hawkins Smith, charged elsewhere, unlawfully took and obtained, and aided
and abetted the unlawful taking and obtaining of, property, that is jewelry and wristwatches
valued at approximately $576,700, and other items, from Tourneau located at 160 North Gulph
Road, in King of Prussia, in the presence of employees of Tourneau and against their will, by
means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the
employees of Tourneau, by brandishing and using a firearm to threaten and control the victims to
steal watches, and other things of value from them, and by brandishing and swinging hammers,

destroying property, and otherwise threatening them.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.
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COUNT THREE
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. Paragraphs 1 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 1 through 6 of Count One of
this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.
2. On or about July 13, 2011, in King of Prussia, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, defendants
DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a, “Darrell Blue,” and
DAVID STORY
a/k/a “Dawoo,”
and confederates knowingly used and carried, and aided and abetted the use and carrying of, a
firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court
of the United States, that is, robbery which interferes with interstate commerce, as charged in
Count Two of this indictment, and brandished, and aided and abetted the brandishing of, that

firearm.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924(c)(1) and 2.
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COUNT FOUR
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:
At all times material to this indictment:
1. Paragraphs 2 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 7 through 19 of Count One of
this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.
2. On or about January 9, 2012, in Ardmore, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, defendants
DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Darrell Blue,”
DAVID STORY,
a/k/a “Dawoo,”
RUFUS LAWSON,
a/k/a “Ru,”
ANTHONY LOCKWOOD,
a/k/a “Ant,” and
KENNETH L. WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Ice,”
obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS,
STORY, LAWSON, LOCKWOOD, and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and James Howard, Santo
Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith, charged elsewhere, unlawfully took and obtained, and
aided and abetted the unlawful taking and obtaining of, property, that is jewelry and wristwatches
valued at approximately $437,804, and other items, from Govberg Jewelers located at 595 E.
Lancaster Avenue, in Ardmore, in the presence of employees of Govberg Jewelers and against

their will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and

future to the employees of Govberg Jewelers, by brandishing and using a firearm to threaten and
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control the victims to steal jewelry, watches, and other things of value from them, and by
brandishing and swinging hammers, destroying property, and otherwise threatening them.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.
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COUNT FIVE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 20 through 30 of Count One
of this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.

2. On or about February 22, 2012, in Saint Davids, in the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania, defendants

DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Darrell Blue,”
DAVID STORY,
a/k/a “Dawoo,”
RUFUS LAWSON,
a’k/a “Ru,” and
KENNETH L. WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Ice,”

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS,
DAVID STORY, RUFUS LAWSON, and KENNETH L. WILLIAMS, and James Howard, Santo
Wadlington, and Willie Hawkins Smith, charged elsewhere, unlawfully took and obtained, and
aided and abetted the unlawful taking and obtaining of, property, that is jewelry and wristwatches
valued at approximately $499,655, and other items, from Bernie Robbins Jewelers located at 595
E. Lancaster Avenue, in Saint Davids, in the presence of employees of Bernie Robbins Jewelers
and against their will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury,

immediate and future to the employees of Bernie Robbins Jewelers, by brandishing and using a

firearm to threaten and control the victims to steal jewelry, watches, and other things of value from
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them, and by brandishing and swinging hammers, destroying property, and otherwise threatening
them.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.
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COUNT SIX
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. Paragraphs 3 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 20 through 30 of Count One
of this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.
2. On or about February 22, 2012, in Saint Davids, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendants

DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a’k/a “Darrell Blue,”
DAVID STORY,
a’k/a “Dawoo,”
RUFUS LAWSON,
a/k/a “Ru,” and
KENNETH L. WILLIAMS,
a/k/a “Ice,”

and confederates knowingly used and carried, and aided and abetted the use and carrying of, a
firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court
of the United States, that is, robbery which interferes with interstate commerce, as charged in
Count Five of this indictment, and brandished, and aided and abetted the brandishing of, that

firearm.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924(c)(1) and 2.
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COUNT SEVEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

At all times material to this indictment:

1. Paragraphs 1 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 38 through 44 of Count One
of this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.

2. On or about April 13,2012, in King of Prussia, in the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania, defendants

DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a, “Darrell Blue,”
DAVID STORY,
a/k/a “Dawoo,” and
RUFUS LAWSON,
a/k/a “Ru,”

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendants DARRELL WILLIAMS,
STORY, LAWSON, and Willie Hawkins Smith, James Howard, and Santo Wadlington, charged
elsewhere, unlawfully took and obtained, and aided and abetted the unlawful taking and obtaining
of, property, that is jewelry and wristwatches valued at approximately $688,250, and other items,
from Tourneau located at 160 North Gulph Road, in King of Prussia, in the presence of employees
of Tourneau and against their will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of
injury, immediate and future to the employees of Tourneau, by brandishing and using a firearm to
threaten and control the victims to steal watches, and other things of value from them, and by

brandishing and swinging hammers, destroying property, and otherwise threatening them.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.
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COUNT EIGHT
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. Paragraphs 1 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 38 through 44 of Count One
of this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.
2. On or about April 13, 2012, in King of Prussia, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, defendants
DARRELL WILLIAMS,
a/k/a, “Darrell Blue,”
DAVID STORY,
a/k/a “Dawoo,” and
RUFUS LAWSON,
a/k/a “Ru,”
and confederates knowingly used and carried, and aided and abetted the use and carrying of, a
firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in a court
of the United States, that is, robbery which interferes with interstate commerce, as charged in
Count Seven of this indictment, and brandished and aided and abetted the brandishing of, that

firearm.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924(c)(1) and 2.
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COUNT NINE
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

At all times material to this indictment:

1. Paragraphs 1 and 7 through 9, and Overt Acts 52 through 56 of Count One
of this second superseding indictment are incorporated here.

2. On or about August 22, 2012, in King of Prussia, in the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID STORY,
a’k/a “Dawoo,”

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant STORY, and Willie Hawkins
Smith, charged elsewhere, unlawfully took and obtained, and aided and abetted the unlawful
taking and obtaining of, property, that is jewelry and wristwatches valued at approximately
$477,100, from Tourneau located at 160 North Gulph Road, in King of Prussia, in the presence of
employees of Tourneau and against their will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence,
and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employees of Tourneau, by brandishing and using a
hammer to threaten and control the victims to steal watches, and other things of value from them,
destroying property, and otherwise threatening them.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.
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COUNT TEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

At all times material to this indictment:

1. The Ultra Diamonds jewelry store, located at 18 West Lightcap Road in
Pottstown, Pennsylvania, one of an interstate chain of jewelry stores headquartered in Chicago,
Illinois, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers
jewelry, watches, and other goods produced, putchased, and transported from other states to
Pennsylvania.

2.~ On or about November 3, 2012, in Pottstown, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, defendants

BRIAN MARQUISE SHEED and
AMIN ABDUR-RAHE SHABAZZ

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that defendants SHEED and SHABAZZ, and
Willie Hawkins Smith, charged elsewhere, unlawfully took and obtained, and aided and abetted
the unlawful taking and obtaining of, property, that is approximately lé wristwatches valued at
$64,809, and other items, from the Ultra Diamonds jewelry store located at 18 West Lightcap
Road, in Pottstown, in the presence of employees of the Ultra Diamonds jewelry store and against

their will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and
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future to the employees of Ultra Diamonds, by brandishing and swinging a sledgehammer and
another hammer, destroying property, and otherwise threatening them.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.

A TRUE BILL:

GRAND JURY FOREPERSON

ZANE DAVID MEMEGER
United States Attorney

26



